TOWN OF
? KILLINGTON

VERMONT

Selectboard Meeting Minutes DRAFT
August 25, 2025

Present: Patrick Cushing, Chairman
Ricky Bowen
Bill Vines
Jay Hickory
Jim Haff

David Atherton, Town Manager

Call to Order

Approval of the Agenda

Approval of the Minutes

Listers - Errors and Omissions

Citizen Comments/Concerns

Board of Liquor Control

Public Works Update - TIF and FEMA Update
a. Trailside, Trailview, and Great Trail Culverts Bid for Flood Recovery
b. Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund RF3-555-3.0 Loan Documents for

Water Contract 4

c. Revised 2024 TIF Annual Report
d. General Update

8. Discussion - Appointment of Water Commissioners

9. Citizen Concerns

10. Selectboard Member Comments or Concerns

11. Manager’s Report

12. Executive Session - Personnel. The appointment, employment, or evaluation of a public
officer or employee, provided that a public body must make the final hiring or
appointment decision, and explain its reasons for the decision, in an open meeting. 1
V.S.A. § 313(a)(3), to include the Town Manager.

13. Adjourn

No ok~



Call to Order
The Meeting was called to order at 6:31 pm.

o

o

. Approval of the Agenda

SB Vines made a motion to approve the Agenda for the August 25th Selectboard
Meeting. The motion was unanimously passed.

. Approval of the Minutes

The Selectboard reviewed the Meeting Minutes for August 11th, 2025. CH
Cushing provided two changes under Art. 11 (Selectboard Member
Comments/Concerns). The first change was to correct a sentence incorrectly
stating that SB Haff was present at the July 14th and July 28th Selectboard
Meetings. SB Haff was not present at the July 14th and July 28th Selectboard
Meetings. The second change was to state that the Selectboard was not
discussing a 20% increase to health care premiums for Town employees. SB
Haff’s statement will remain in the Meeting Minutes however, a clarification will
be added. SB Vines asked whether the Selectboard should strike a conversation
held under Art. 8 (FY26 Budget Discussion) about the Town Manager’s salary as
he was informed by several sources, including CH Cushing in his review with the
Town Attorney, that the conversation should have been held in Executive
Session. After discussion, the Selectboard ultimately decided to keep the
conversation in the Minutes as it was held in public; however, CH Cushing stated
the Selectboard would need to be more conscious about further public Personnel
discussions. CH Cushing made a motion to approve the Meeting Minutes for
August 11th, 2025. The motion was unanimously passed.

The Selectboard reviewed the Special Meeting Minutes for August 15th, 2025.
CH Cushing made a motion to approve the Special Meeting Minutes for August
15th, 2025. The motion was unanimously passed.

Andrew Gieda, Town Resident, stated that SB Haff called him names during the
August 11th, 2025 Selectboard Meeting and requested the Meeting Minutes
include the names. Gieda stated he is “pursuing some other actions” against SB
Haff with a lawyer and needs the corrected Meeting Minutes. Gieda also stated
that SB Haff stated in the August 11th, 2025 Selectboard Meeting that Abbie
Sherman, Public Works Director, was hired by him and authorized to work from
home on Fridays. SB Haff stated he was fine including in the Meeting Minutes
that he called Gieda an “ass” and stated that he never stated he hired Abbie
Sherman. CH Cushing stopped SB Haff from continuing comment stating that he
could provide his response during Art. 10 (Selectboard Member Comments or
Concerns). No motion was made by a Selectboard Member to add Gieda’s
comments to the August 11th, 2025 Meeting Minutes.

Don Martin, Town Resident, asked about where the email mentioned by SB Haff
during the August 11th, 2025 about health care premiums increasing to 20%
originated from. TM Atherton stated two Town Employees asked him whether



their health care premiums would increase to 20% which TM Atherton stated was
not discussed by anyone in a Selectboard Meeting. The Town Employees stated
that the Zoning Administrator, SB Haff, informed them of this. TM Atherton
stated he then sent out an email saying that as an acting Zoning Administrator or
individual Selectboard Member, SB Haff did not have the authority to make those
decisions. SB Haff clarified again that he was not at the July 14th or 28th
Selectboard Meetings when he heard this potential change.

4. Citizen Comments/Concerns

o

George Brant, Town Resident, followed up again on a previous question from the
July 28th and August 11th, 2025 Selectboard Meetings regarding the Town’s
payment for solar panels. Brant’'s concern is that TM Atherton stated the solar
panels were paid; however, the FY24 audit showed the solar panels as an
unpaid debt. TM Atherton stated the solar panels were paid from three separate
restricted funds from the Recreation Department, the Library, the Town Garage
and the Town Hall. (Clarification Needed: TM Atherton first stated the solar
panels were paid by funds from the Recreation Department, the Library, and the
Town Hall. Later he stated they were paid by funds from the Library, the Town
Garage, and the Town Hall). TM Atherton stated that he was not a Town
Manager at the time. TM Atherton stated he would share the Nimrick information
with Brant.

Brant, Town Resident, followed up again on his question about how many Town
Employees were on the Town’s health insurance plans. TM Atherton stated
there were 5 Town Employees on the Family Plan, 2 on the Two-Person Plan,
and 15 on the Single Plan. There are a total of 22 Town Employees on the
Town’s health insurance plans out of a total of 52 Town Employees.

Brant, Town Resident, also requested that the Selectboard use a larger screen
for Powerpoint presentations.

Jon Wysocki, Town Resident, asked if the Selectboard had any updates from the
August 11th, 2025 Selectboard Meeting about the issued warrants that had
redundancies and issues. CH Cushing stated that it was a double print issue.
Nothing was double paid.

Wysocki, Town Resident, asked to follow up on the August 11th, 2025
Selectboard Meeting conversation about the Town Manager’s contract. CH
Cushing stated this conversation would be held in Executive Session. Wysocki
stated that he wanted to ask about the Town Manager’s contract as the four
current Selectboard Members ran on campaigns focused on transparency and
full disclosure. Wysocki stated that Town Residents seem very concerned about
transparency, especially with former Town Managers and past financial affairs.
Wysocki expressed concern that discussing the Town Manager’s contract in
Executive Session would go against the Selectboard Members’ campaign on
transparency and asked the Selectboard to publicly discuss the Town Manager’s
contract, without naming the Town Manager, as it is a signed legally binding
contract. CH Cushing stated the Selectboard would discuss the Town Manager’s



contract and legal advice from the Town’s Counsel in Executive Session and
would share if any decisions were made. SB Haff stated he would not attend the
Executive Session.

Andrew Gieda, Town Resident, stated that lots of documents were missing and
stated that this was related to nepotism as married Town Employees were
working on the weekends. CH Cushing asked Gieda to stop speaking as the
Selectboard would discuss further in the Executive Session.

5. Listers - Errors and Omissions

o

Lister Krista Mosher discussed the Listers’ Errors and Omissions. The Listers
previously provided a notice a few weeks ago.

The first omission concerned Komatsu Financial Limited Partnerships. It was
documented that there was $234,799 dollars worth of personal property. Mosher
stated she made the mistake that it was removed prior to April 1st which they
were sent a tax bill for. Komatsu Financial Limited Partnerships requested this
omission be remediated. SB Haff clarified that Komatsu Financial Limited
Partnerships has $0 dollars worth of personal property. SB Haff made a motion
to accept the Listers’ Errors and Omissions correction for Komatsu Financial
Limited Partnerships’ personal property from $234,799 dollars to $0 dollars at the
time of April 1st. SB Vines seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously
approved.

The second omission concerned Green Mountain Power. Green Mountain
Power’s personal property is provided to the Town by the State of Vermont. The
Town did not receive the correct number from the State in time. Instead, the
previous amount of $179,749 dollars was utilized. The accurate amount for the
current year is $205,457 dollars. Green Mountain Power would like to be taxed
on the correct amount. SB Haff made a motion to accept the Listers’ Errors and
Omissions correct for Green Mountain Power increasing their personal property
from $179,749 dollars to $205,457 dollars. SB Bowen seconded the motion.
The motion unanimously passed.

6. Board of Liquor Control

o

Peggy Neisner, Town Clerk, informed the Selectboard that she approved a
Special Events Permit for the Killington Distillery for an event at the Basin Sports
on October 11th, 2025.

Neisner presented Casey G’s application for a 3rd class liquor license renewal at
Casey’s Caboose. SB Haff made a motion for the Town Clerk to move forward
with Casey G’s request for a 3rd class liquor license renewal at Casey’s
Caboose. SB Vines seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously
approved.

Neisner presented Killington Restaurant, Inc’s application for an outside
consumption limited permit at the Pico Mountain Base Lodge for the Brew Fest
on September 20th, 2025. SB Haff made a motion for the Town Clerk to move
forward with Killington Restaurant Inc’s request for an outside consumption



limited permit at the Pico Mountain Base Lodge on September 20th, 2025. SB
Vines seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously approved.

o Neisner presented Killington Restaurant Inc’s application for a 3rd class liquor
license at the Bear Mountain Base Lodge for the Spartan Race on September
13th and September 14th, 2025. SB Haff made a motion for the Town Clerk to
move forward with Killington Restaurant Inc’s request for a 3rd class liquor
license at the Bear Mountain Base Lodge for September 13th and September
14th, 2025. SB Vines seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously
approved.

o Neisner presented Waite Family Restaurant, LLC’s application for an outside
consumption permit for Backcountry Cafe. SB Haff made a motion for the Town
Clerk to move forward with Waite Family Restaurant LLC’s request for an outside
consumption permit for Backcountry Cafe. SB Vines seconded the motion. The
motion was unanimously approved.

o Neisner presented Gondola, Inc’s application for a 1st and 3rd class liquor
license for a new restaurant at 2841 Killington Road. SB Haff made a motion for
the Town Clerk to move forward with Gondola, Inc’s request for a 1st and 3rd
class liquor license. SB Vines seconded the motion. The motion was
unanimously approved.

7. Public Works Update - TIF and FEMA
Abbie Sherman, Public Works Director, spoke to the Selectboard on the following topics:
o Trailside, Trailview, and Great Trail Culverts Bid for Flood Recovery

i.  Sherman previously provided copies and a summary of the bid results
from Enman Kesselring. Sherman would like to discuss two of the bids
from KT Hathaway and Mosher Excavating. KT Hathaway did not provide
the bid until the day after the bid was due and Mosher Excavating did not
provide the disposal location. Sherman stated that leaves Bird’s Eye
Building who was the highest bidder at $1.34 million. Sherman’s
recommendation to the Selectboard was to re-bid the projects. The Town
has time to re-bid as the projects will not start until July 1st, 2026, at the
earliest.

i. SB Haff made a motion to cancel out the current bid process. It would be
the Public Works Department’s responsibility then to go forward with a re-
bidding process. SB Vines seconded the motion. Following a request
from Sherman to adjust the wording of the motion, SB Haff and SB Vines
rescinded their motion. SB Haff made a new motion to reject the current
bid and request a re-bid for the listed projects. SB Vines seconded the
motion.

o Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund RF3-555-3.0 Loan Documents
for Contract 4

i.  Sherman reviewed the Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund. The
Selectboard previously approved and signed some loan documents;
however, before the Town submitted the documents and completed the



process, the Town discovered the loan documents were not drafted in a
way that reflected the best interests of the Town. Sherman stated that
ideally, the two loans would be drafted into one loan document . This
way, the forgivable portion of the loan will be applied to a grant
anticipation note and the remaining cost will be taken out with a smaller
bond anticipation note which is applied to the $47 million voter approval
for TIF rather than the full amount of the loan which is just over $5.6
million. Sherman stated this would be better for the Town and the TIF
District. Sherman provided new loan documents which would need to be
signed by CH Cushing.

SB Haff made a motion to move forward with the Drinking Water State
Revolving Loan Fund RF3-555-3.0 with a loan amount of $5,608,850
dollars which would supersede the prior documents signed but not
submitted. SB Vines seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously
passed.

o Revised 2024 TIF Annual Report

Sherman presented the revised 2024 TIF Annual Report which the
Selectboard previously reviewed in February 2025. Sherman reviewed
the purpose of the report to the Selectboard to the new Selectboard
Members including its reporting of the increase in taxable value, the tax
increment the Town received for the fiscal year, and expenses the Town
paid on infrastructure improvements. It also describes any property
developments within the TIF district, jobs that were created or lost in the
TIF district, and provides an update on the project criteria for the TIF
district. Sherman discussed the changes made in the revised 2024 TIF
Annual Report including changes related to the $8.4 million bond
anticipation note for expenses associated with the water system and the
Killington Road as well as a DWSRF loan that would have been fully
forgiven. However, as the Town used the bond to pay some expenses,
those expenses now count towards the $47 million debt. As a result,
Sherman reorganized and updated the debt service under Vote and
Financing. Sherman discussed other instances where other forgivable
expenses now counted towards the $47 million debt. Sherman discussed
the revisions to the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund RF3-555-3.0
Loan Documents previously approved by the Selectboard. Sherman
discussed Killington Road Phase 1’'s expenses which were under what
was originally reported. Sherman discussed sources of non-TIF revenues
which was adjusted for the portion of the SRF Loan which will be forgiven.
SB Haff requested that the Finance Director's name be changed as the
previous Finance Director's name is listed on the revised 2024 TIF
Annual Report, although they did not provide revisions. Sherman stated
she would prefer to not remove the previous Finance Director’'s name as
they completed the original draft. The Selectboard came to an agreement
that the previous Finance Director’'s name would be included and dated



on the revised 2024 TIF Annual Report with Sherman’s name listed and
dated for the revisions.

SB Vines made a motion to approve the revised 2024 TIF Annual Report
with the change that the name of the person completing the report should
read Mary Keenan-Haff, revised 7/31/2025 by Abbie Sherman on the top.
SB Haff seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously approved.

o General Update

Sherman stated that 6 flood recovery projects have been obligated for
just over $1.7 million dollars. Over the amount obligated, $1.4 million has
been received by the Town.

The Highway Department began completing the final flood recovery work
on Roundabout Road and the final pavement has been applied to East
Mountain Road.

Enman Kesselring and Heritage Engineering are continuing to work on
design plans for two proposed bridge locations at Rim Road and Ledge
End Road and a culvert on Richardson Road. All three of these projects
will go out to bid Fall 2025 for construction in Summer 2026.

Under the Killington Forward construction projects for Water Contract 1-
3A, the construction of the storage tank is nearly complete. A tank
walkthrough will be held on Friday, August 29th, 2025 with the engineer
and the Town’s Water Operator, Brian Heaton. The generator for the
High Service Pump Station was installed a few weeks ago. Testing for
Well #3 was completed. Jeff Hopper is preparing a source evaluation
report which is an important step in the Town being able to receive a
source permit for that well. Afterwards, the Town can file an amendment
with Act 250 to start using the well. Completion date for Contract 1-3A is
the end of October 2025. Water Contract 3 is continuing and the Town is
looking towards final paving of portions that have been completed to be
done Fall 2025. Towards Contracts 5-6A, the Dufresne Group
recommended the Town bid out this project closer to when Contract 4 is
completed as one of the requirements for Contracts 5-6A is access to
potable water to test the water line, which will be available once Contract
4 is completed. Then Contract 7 will be bid out once the Town knows
Contracts 5-6A are completed.

For Road Construction Phase 1B from Anthony Way to Route 4, the
bollards will be installed on Tuesday, August 26th, 2025. The Town is
continuing to negotiate with Markowski Excavating on the cobblestone.
The additional plantings will be installed according to the engineering
designs. The Town has completed the design plans for Phase 1A. VHB
submitted the design plans to USDA for their review. The Town will need
USDA'’s approval before the project can be bid out. Towards Road
Construction Phase 2-4, the Town has a RFQ out to engineering design
services which was posted on July 29th and will close on August 27th.



vi.  SB Haff asked why the Town was negotiating with Markowski Excavating
about the cobblestone along the Killington Road when it was done
incorrectly by Markowski Excavating. Sherman stated that it was difficult
to put a dollar value on the amount that was not completed. The Town
and Markowski Excavating are negotiating the cost of the uncompleted
work. SB Haff stated that the Town should hold Markowski Excavating to
the agreed upon contract.

Vii. Andrew Gieda, Town Resident, stated that two years ago he informed the
Selectboard that the cobblestone design would not work. He stated that
SB Haff asked him if he was an engineer. Gieda stated he told SB Haff
he was a stonemason. Gieda stated that SB Haff told him that the Town
was going to trust the engineers to complete the project. Gieda stated
that he believed SB Haff and the previous Selectboard Members should
volunteer to pull the cobblestones by hand as they were present in the
room when Gieda questioned the design. Gieda then stated he believes
a double-sided guardrail should be installed for safety. Gieda asked SB
Haff whether he personally asked the Road Foreman about the project.
SB Haff stated the decision was not made on his own and the decision
was made with the other Selectboard Members. Concerning the double-
sided guardrails, SB Haff asked Gieda if he was an engineer. SB Haff
stated that the Town hired VHB as their engineering and hired consultant
Stephanie Clarke.

viii.  SB Haff stated that while the Town was negotiating with Markowski
Excavating on the cobblestone, VHB should also be brought into the
conversation as they were responsible for overseeing that everything was
properly installed.

8. Discussion - Appointment of Water Commissioners

o

Brian Heaton, Water Operator, led the discussion on the appointment of Water
Commissioners. There will be a total of five Water Commissioners. Heaton
reviewed a few potential candidates and asked for additional recommendations.
The Selectboard discussed the requirement that all Water Commissioners must
be connected to the waterline within 12 months of their appointment.

9. Citizen Concerns

o

Andrew Gieda, Town Resident, asked to follow up on a previous discussion
about The Heights property. Gieda asked TM Atherton if he had any additional
information on the purchase and sale of The Heights. TM Atherton stated the
Town acquired The Heights through a tax sale with about $600,000 dollars worth
of delinquent taxes. TM Atherton stated the Town sold it at a significantly less
amount with the taxes zeroed out with no interest or penalty. TM Atherton stated
this was not done by the Board of Abatement. TM Atherton stated he spoke with
the Town’s Attorney on the process who stated he was not consulted after the
1061 Notice. SB Haff stated that this discussion should be an upcoming Agenda



Item and stated there were certain things TM Atherton stated that were not
correct. SB Haff stated that the Town’s Attorney was in the process of allowing
the Selectboard to appoint a person to bid on the development rights, not the
property. A disagreement ensued between SB Haff and Gieda. CH Cushing
stopped the conversation and stated an upcoming Agenda Item would be created
to hold a discussion.

10. Selectboard Member Comments or Concerns

o

SB Bowen stated he believed TM Atherton was owed an apology as his contract
was discussed outside of Executive Session. SB Haff stated that he read out the
contract during a budget discussion.

SB Haff stated if the Selectboard would allow Town Residents to attack
Selectboard Members, namely himself, Selectboard Meetings would continue to
be chaotic.

11. Manager’s Report

o

TM Atherton stated that paving began last week on West Hill Road. Paving is
also continuing on River Road. Both paving projects will be completed by the
end of this week or the beginning of next week.

The Town hired a new finance director who started on August 25th, 2025. Her
name is Kirsten Hathaway. She was a former Town Clerk in Rutland Town.
TM Atherton introduced Matt Trombley who is the Town’s acting Fire Chief.
Trombley introduced himself.

Chad Galiano is currently acting as the Interim Foreman. He has been working
with the Town of Killington for the past 8 months. The Town is looking to hire
more employees in the Highway Department but is having issues finding
individuals who already have a CDL.

TM Atherton spoke to Ron from RHR Smith about conducting a forensic audit.
Ron will send the Town a scope of work and cost estimate.

The Town will move forward with NEMRIC to train the new Finance Director and
Town Employees. Cynthia, the representative from NEMRIC, is contracted to
work with the Town for 96 hours for just under $10,000 dollars.

12. Executive Session - Personnel. The appointment, employment, or evaluation of a
public officer or employee, provided that a public body must make the final hiring
or appointment decision, and explain its reasons for the decision, in an open
meeting. 1 V.S.A. § 313(a)(3), to include the Town Manager.

o

The Selectboard entered into Executive Session at 8:09 pm. They invited in TM
Atherton. SB Haff stated that he was leaving the building and would not attend
the Executive Session as he did not feel comfortable attending. Before the
remaining Selectboard Members and TM Atherton entered into the Executive
Session, Jon Wysocki, Town Resident, asked if the Selectboard would be
discussing the Town Manager’s existing contract. CH Cushing stated that they
were going into Executive Session for Personnel, Contracts, and Legal. CH



Cushing stated more would be said when they exited. Wysocki asked if there
was a conflict of interest for anyone who was a Town Employee to participate in
such a conversation. CH Cushing said no. Wysocki stated that having TM
Atherton attend the Executive Session, along with SB Hickory who was also a
Town Employee, could present a conflict of interest. If SB Haff was to attend,
that would be three Town Employees. SB Haff stated that he disagreed that it
was a conflict of interest as the Selectboard oversaw the Town Manager. SB
Haff stated that he still would not attend the Executive Session as he disagreed
with attending an Executive Session to potentially alter an already signed and
legally binding contract.

o The Selectboard exited Executive Session at 8:38 pm. CH Cushing stated that
the Selectboard discussed what they should do if they can’t find a contract with
the Town Manager. CH Cushing stated that he spoke with the Town’s Legal
Counsel and stated that the Town did not have a signed Town Manager contract
by all parties. They discussed the point of clarification over the $140,000 dollar
annual contract versus $140,000 dollars over a 15-month period. Legal Counsel
advised that the Town Manager should receive a $140,000 dollar annual salary
with a contract duration of 15 months. Legal Counsel came to this decision as
during a March 18th Special Selectboard Meeting, where the contract was signed
and read, even though the contract was read as is written, the Special Meeting
Minutes noted that it would be a $140,000 annual salary. During the following
Selectboard Meeting on April 14th, 2025, CH Cushing, SB Bowen, and SB Haff
approved the Minutes with no correction. The Town’s Legal Counsel stated that
the approval of those Meeting Minutes acts as the Selectboard agreeing to the
$140,000 annual salary and if the Selectboard was to push against the salary as
written in the Special Meeting Minutes of March 18th, 2025, it would not hold up
in court.

o CH Cushing made a motion for the Selectboard to sign and accept the document
prepared by the Town’s Legal Counsel that ratifies the version of the contract
that the Town has with the clarification that the annual salary is $140,000 dollars.
SB Bowen seconded the motion. All Selectboard Members agreed to the motion
based on the advice provided by the Town’s Legal Counsel. SB Haff was not
present during the motion. The motion was passed.

13. Adjourn
The Meeting was adjourned at 8:42 pm.



